

Olessia Kirtchik

Date and place of birth: May 1, 1978; Novosibirsk, Russia

Citizenship: Russia

Professional address:

National Research University — Higher School of Economics

Myasnitckaya str., 20, Moscow, 101000

okirtchik@hse.ru

+7 916 595 37 31

Present occupations

NATIONAL RESEARCH UNIVERSITY – HIGHER SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS

2012–Present. Leading Research Fellow at the Poletayev Institute for Theoretical and Historical Studies in the Humanities

2011–Present. Lecturer at the Sociology Department

CO-EDITOR OF “LABORATORIUM: RUSSIAN REVIEW OF SOCIAL RESEARCH”

Past appointments

NATIONAL RESEARCH UNIVERSITY – HIGHER SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS

2011–2012. Leading Research Fellow at the international Laboratory for the Study of Science and Technology

2009–2011. Senior Research Fellow at the Institute for Statistical Studies and Economics of Knowledge

INSTITUTE OF SOCIOLOGY OF THE RUSSIAN ACADEMY OF SCIENCES

2009–2012. Part-time Research Fellow

2006–2009. Junior Research Fellow

Courses taught

NATIONAL RESEARCH UNIVERSITY – HIGHER SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS

2011–Present. “Social analysis of the economic knowledge,” a Master program in history, and a Bachelor program in sociology

2011–Present. “Historical-comparative methodology in social research,” a Master program in sociology

MOSCOW HIGHER SCHOOL OF SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC SCIENCES (MSES)

2008–2011. “Methodology of social sciences”, a joint Master program in sociology (MSES and University of Manchester)

Education

SCHOOL FOR ADVANCED STUDIES IN THE SOCIAL SCIENCES (EHESS), PARIS

2007. Ph.D., Sociology (with “Félicitations du jury à l’unanimité”)

2001. Diploma of Advanced Studies (DEA), Sociology (with honor “Très Bien”)

FRENCH UNIVERSITY COLLEGE / MOSCOW STATE UNIVERSITY

2000. Diploma of the University College of Moscow, Sociology

MOSCOW STATE PEDAGOGICAL UNIVERSITY

2000. B.A., Philology (“With Distinction”)

Individual grants and fellowships

2013-2014. Fellowship of the Institute of Advanced Studies in Paris

2008-2009. *Diderot* research fellowship, la Maison des Sciences de l'Homme (MSH), Paris

2001-2004. French Government's doctorate fellowship

2001. Grant for young researchers, National Institute for Youth Studies and Public Education, France

2000-2001. French Government's fellowship for advanced studies (DEA)

Selected presentations at conferences and research seminars

2014. «The role of economic ideas in policy-making as a research problem: Mathematical Economics in the USSR», with Ivan Boldyrev: a talk and organization of the interdisciplinary research workshop: «Science and Rationality in the Soviet Economy in the Second Half of the XXth Century: Reforms, Institutions and Ideas», National Research University – Higher School of Economics, Moscow, December 19.

«Historical development of social science objects: rural studies in France after 1945»: a paper presentation at the international conference «Intellectual History vis-a-vis the Sociology of Knowledge: between Models and Cases», National Research University – Higher School of Economics, Moscow, August 28-30.

«New Economic Policies: reforms, privatization, and “path dependency”»: invited talk at the summer school of the French-Russian center for social sciences and humanities «Sorties des régimes socialistes-autoritaires, de 1945 à nos jours», Moscou, 25-30 août.

«L'internationalisation des sciences économiques en Russie: hiérarchies transnationales et stratégies locales»: a paper presentation at the conference «Circulations internationales et échelles d'analyse: Une approche pluridisciplinaire», École Normale Supérieure, Paris, Mai 23.

«Soviet mathematical economics and the reformist discourse in the late Soviet Union: affinities and mismatches»: a communication at the annual BASEES meeting 2014, Cambridge, April 5-7; organization of the Section 4.13. History: Western economic rationality and the late Soviet reformist thinking.

«L'institutionnalisation de l'économie rurale en France dans la deuxième moitié du XXe siècle : une 'science affiliée à l'administration': a communication at the research seminar of the Institute for Advanced Studies of Paris, February 18.

2013. «General Equilibrium Theory Traveling Behind the Iron Curtain». With Ivan Boldyrev: a paper presentation at the panel on “Historical sociology and the history of sociology”, at the annual meetings of the American Sociological Association, NYC. August.

«Les politiques du “terrain” dans l'économie rurale française et russe»: a paper presentation at the German-French colloquium «Saisir le terrain: terrain et culture», Goethe-Universität, Frankfurt. July.

«Soviet mathematical economists during the Brezhnev era: Disciplinary status and epistemic culture». With Ivan Boldyrev: a presentation at the international conference «Economic culture: values and interests», St-Petersburg State University. April.

«Soviet and Russian scholarly journals in the Web of Science: effects of publications' language and country on their “international visibility”»: a paper presentation at the conference «Academic journals: organization of science and transmission of knowledge», Higher School of Economics, St-Petersburg. March.

2012. «Soviet mathematical economics between Plan and Market (a case of Viktor Polterovitch)»: a talk at the international conference «Embeddedness and Beyond: Do Sociological Theories Meet Economic Realities?», Higher School of Economics, Moscow. October.

«Mathematical economics in the USSR during the Brezhnev time as a “disciplinary limb”»: a talk at the conference “Poletayev readings”, Higher School of Economics, Moscow. October.

«Practical science: a comparative-historical study of the agricultural economics in Russia and France»: a paper presentation at the annual meeting of the European Society for the History of the Economics Thought (ESHET 2012), St-Petersburg. May.

2011. «Les économistes comme acteurs et auteurs de la Perestroika (le cas de l'agriculture): an invited talk at the conference «1991 and the collapse of the Soviet Union through the prism of political, social and cultural transformations» (1970-1991)», Institute for Political Studies (ISP), Paris. December.

«Internationalization of the higher education: foreign doctorate holders on the Russian academic market as agents of transformation?»: a paper presentation at the European conference of educational research «Urban Education» (ECER 2011), Berlin. September.

«Economic sciences and market reforms in Russia and Argentina»: a paper presentation at the IXth Annual Sociological Conference of the University of Buenos Aires «Capitalismo del siglo XXI, crisis y reconfiguraciones Luces y sombras en América Latina», Buenos-Aires. August.

«“What is agricultural economics?”: construction and deconstruction of disciplinary boundaries (cases of Russia and France)»: a presentation at the first joint meeting of the International Society for the History of the Neurosciences (ISHN) and the International Society for the History of Behavioral and Social Sciences (Cheiron), University of Calgary, Alberta. June.

«“Sedentary” vs. “peripatetic” academics: patterns of the international (im)mobility of Russian scientists»: a talk at the annual conference «The ways of Russia», Moscow School for Social and Economic Sciences. February.

2010. «Agricultural economists between practice and administration: a comparative historical analysis (Russia, France and the United States)»: a talk at the research seminar of INTERcenter (MSSSES), Moscow. November.

«Bibliometric “revolution” and internationalization of science»: a presentation at the Section «Economy of S&T and Innovation» of the French-Russian Conference *Économie, politique et société: nouveaux défis et perspectives*, Higher School of Economics, Moscow. October.

«Economists' role during the radical reforms in Argentina and in Russia». With Mariana Heredia. CURAPP, University Jules Verne, Amiens. Mars.

2009. «Disciplinary boundaries as political boundaries: a case of agricultural economics»: a talk at the French-Russian conference on *Symbolic power: social sciences and politics*, Moscow. October.

«On the critics of “pure theory” in the French tradition of social sciences»: a plenary talk at the colloquium *Development vectors of the contemporary Russia: research theories and practices*, Higher School of Social and Economic Sciences, Moscow. April.

2008. «Agricultural economist: a threatened species?»: a presentation at the Annual meeting of the International association of French speaking sociologists, Istanbul. July.

«An essay of sociological analysis of economic policy: a case of agrarian domain in post-soviet Russia»: a talk at the summer school of the French-Russian center for social sciences and humanities, Petrozavodsk. June.

2007. «Two steps ahead and one step back: Metamorphoses of the agrarian discourse of perestroika in the post-Soviet period in Russia»: a presentation at the Aleksanteri Conference *Revisiting Perestroika*, Helsinki. November.

Peer-reviewed articles and other academic publications

Forthcoming. (With Mariana Heredia.) SBS under Dictatorship. In: James D. Wright, Editor-in-Chief, *International Encyclopedia of Social & Behavioral Sciences* 2nd Edition. Oxford: Elsevier Ltd (in press).

«Economics as a global science: transnational hierarchies and local orders of knowledge» (In Russian). In: *Formation of a disciplinary field in the Humanities*. Edited by Alexandre Dmitriev et al. Moscow: NRU HSE Press (in press).

2014. (With Ivan Boldyrev.) «General Equilibrium Theory Behind the Iron Curtain: The Case of Victor Polterovich,» *History of Political Economy*. 2014. Vol. 46. No. 3. P. 435-461*.

«La globalisation des sciences économiques: principes de distinction et impact sur les champs nationaux,» *Revue Economique et Sociale*. 2014. Vol. 72. No. 2. P. 71-76.

2013. (With Ivan Boldyrev.) The culture of mathematical economics in the Post War Soviet Union / Working papers by NRU Higher School of Economics. Series WP6 "Research in the Humanities". 2013.

(With Ivan Boldyrev.) General equilibrium theory behind the iron curtain: the case of Victor Polterovich / Working papers. Series HUM «Humanities.» No. 14/HUM/2013 (<http://www.hse.ru/data/2013/02/21/1306670053/14HUM2013.pdf>).

A book review: Johanna Bockman. *Markets in the Name of Socialism: The Left-Wing Origins of Neoliberalism*. Stanford, CA: Stanford University Press. (In Russian). In: *Laboratorium. Russian Review of Social Research*. 2013. No. 1. P. 152-155
(<http://www.soclabo.org/index.php/laboratorium/article/view/116>).

An interview with Marion Fourcade. «Durkheim and science studies for the economic sociology» (in Russian). *Ekonomicheskaya Sociologiya*. Vol. 14. No 2. P. 8-16
(http://ecsoc.hse.ru/data/2013/03/31/1234591652/ecsoc_t14_n2.pdf#page=8).

An interview with Tommaso Pardi. «The New Geopolitics of the Automobile Industry» (in Russian). *Ekonomicheskaya Sociologiya*. Vol. 14, No 1. P. 7-12
(http://ecsoc.hse.ru/data/2013/01/30/1234591630/ecsoc_t14_n1.pdf#page=7).

2012. Kirtchik O. I., Gingras Y., Larivière V. «Changes in publication languages and citation practices and their effect on the scientific impact of Russian science (1993–2010).» *Journal of the American Society for Information Science and Technology*. Vol. 63. No. 7. P. 1411-1419*.

«Limits and Strategies for the Internationalization of Russian Economic Science: Sociological Interpretation of Bibliometric Data.» *Laboratorium: Russian Review of Social Research*. Vol. 4. No. 1. P. 19-44* (<http://www.soclabo.org/index.php/laboratorium/article/view/277>).

2011. «"Invisible" science: internationalization patterns of Russian academic publications» (in Russian). *Foresight*. Vol. 5. No. 3. P. 34-42*.

«Disciplinary and symbolic boundaries: a case of agricultural economics» (in Russian). In: *Symbolic power: social sciences and politics*. Moscow: «Universitetskaya kniga», P. 247-275.

A book review: Marion Fourcade. *Economists and Societies: Discipline and Profession in the United States, Britain, and France, 1890s to 1990s*. Princeton: Princeton University Press. (In Russian). *Laboratorium. Russian Review of Social Research*. No 2. P. 100-103
(<http://www.soclabo.org/index.php/laboratorium/article/view/257>).

«French Sociologists on Capitalism (à propos "Le Nouvel Esprit du Capitalisme" by L. Boltanski and E. Chiapello).» *Voprosy Ekonomiki*. No 9. P. 152-156.

2010. (With Mariana Heredia.) «La notion de 'champ' à l'épreuve de l'histoire sociale comparée: les sciences économiques en Russie et en Argentine.» *Social Science Information* 49 (4): 585-613*.

(With Mariana Heredia.) «The Russian and Argentinean experiences of radical reform. Between economy and politics.» *Laboratorium: Russian Review of Social Research* 2 (3): 22-64*.
(http://www.soclabo.org/UserFiles/Journal/2010.02/Art_pdf/02_eng.pdf)

(With Mariana Heredia) "Comparing post-soviet and latin american societies: from Transition to Transformation." Introduction to a thematic issue "Former USSR and Latin America: Studies in post-authoritarian transformations." *Laboratorium: Russian Review of Social research* 2(3): 5-12.
(<http://www.soclabo.org/rus/journal/7/2/vers/118/>)

"Economy of conventions, economic heterodoxy and social ontology" (in Russian). *Voprosy Ekonomiki* 69: 4-11.

"Les défis de la politique agricole en Russie dans le contexte de la globalisation libérale." *Mondes en Mouvement* 1 (Agriculture, territoires et mondialisation)*. (<http://s3.e-monsite.com/2010/10/26/72305633kirtchik-defis-pdf.pdf>)

2009. "Sociology of intellectuals of Pierre Bourdieu" (in Russian). In: *History and theory of intelligentsia and intellectuals*, edited by V. Kurennoy. Moscow: Eurasia. P. 314-333.

(With Mariana Heredia.) "Les sciences économiques et les réformes néolibérales en Argentine et en Russie: les limites de la notion du champ", in *Parcours d'une sociologue, figures d'un engagement. De la sociologie des élites à la transmission des savoirs, Hommage à Monique de Saint Martin*, edited by P. Gruson, M. Dino Gheorghiu et D. de Castro Rocha. Iasi, Editura Universitatii Alexandru Ioan Cuza.

"Interview with Robert Castel: 15 years later." Post-face to the Russian edition (in Russian). In: *Metamorphosy social'nogo voprosa*. Saint-Petersburg: Aleteia.

Review of "Metamorphoses of the social question" by Robert Castel (in Russian). *Laboratorium: Russian Review of Social research* 1(1): 292-295.

2007. "History as economy, or a travel from 1921 to 1906 via 1990" (in Russian). *Novoe Literaturnoe Obozrenie* 83: 395-411. (<http://magazines.russ.ru/nlo/2007/83/ki26-pr.html>)

2006. "Agrarian question in Russia in the end of the 20th century: a construction of an image of *hozyain* (master) in public discourse" (in Russian). In: *Sotsiologicheskie etudy*. Moscow: Variant, Institute of Sociology RAN.

2004. "Agrarian debate in post-soviet Russia" (in Russian). *Otechestvennyye zapiski* 1: 81-90. (<http://www.strana-oz.ru/?article=750&numid=16>)

2003. "Social sciences and reflexivity: Some reflections about one colloquium." (In Russian.) *Novoe Literaturnoe Obozrenie* 60: 81-90. (<http://magazines.russ.ru/nlo/2003/60/kirch-pr.html>)

2002. "Jeunes Russes et la politique." *AGORA Débats / Jeunesses* 30: 122-135*.

* Peer-reviewed papers.

Selected academic translations

де Сен Мартен М. Воспитание чувства превосходства / Перев.: О. И. Кирчик // *Философско-литературный журнал "Логос"*. 2013. Т. 91. № 1. С. 187-217. **Original: de Saint Martin, Monique. *Espace de la noblesse*. Paris: Métailie, 1993, "Collection Legons des choses", 326 p.**

Марион Фуркад, Киран Хили. Моральные теории рыночного общества // *Символическая власть: социальные науки и политика. Socio/LOGOS'2011* / под ред. Н.А. Шматко. Москва: Университетская книга. С. 127-185. **Original: Fourcade, Marion and Kieran Healy. 2007. "Moral Views of Market Society." *Annual Review of Sociology*. 33: 285-311.**

Робер Кастель. *Метаморфозы социального вопроса*. Главы 4, 5. СПб: Алетейя, 2009. **Original: *Chapitres IV et V in Robert Castel, Métamorphoses de la question sociale*, Fayard, 1995, rééd. Folio 1999.**

Пьер Бурдьё. "Генезис и структура поля религии" // *Социальное пространство: поля и практики*. СПб.: Алетейя, 2005. **Original: Pierre Bourdieu, "Genèse et structure du champ religieux", *Revue française de sociologie*, XII, 1971: 295-334.**

Пьер Бурдьё. "Власть права: элементы социологии юридического поля" // *Социальное пространство: поля и практики*. СПб.: Алетейя, 2005. **Original: Pierre Bourdieu, *La force du droit. Pour une sociologie du champ juridique*, *Actes de la recherche en sciences sociales*, n° 64, 1986: 3-19.**

Ив Жангра. Мотив радикализма. О некоторых новых тенденциях в социологии науки и технологии // Альманах РФЦСиФ ИСПАН “Социология под вопросом. Социальные науки в постструктуралистской перспективе”. М.: Праксис; Институт экспериментальной социологии, 2005. **Original: Yves Gingras. Un air de radicalisme. Sur quelques tendances récentes en sociologie de la science et de la technologie, Actes de la recherche en sciences sociales, 1995, n° 108: 3-17.**

Пьер Бурдьё. Отрывки из книги “Различение: социальная критика суждения” // Западная экономическая социология: Хрестоматия современной классики, М.: РОССПЭН, 2004. **Original: Pierre Bourdieu. La Distinction, critique sociale du jugement. Minuit, 1979.**

Фредерик Лебарон. “Против, напротив...”: экономические модели и экономизм // Журнал социологии и социальной антропологии. 2004. Т. 7. № 5. **Original: Frédéric Lebaron, “ Les modèles économiques contre l’économisme “, Coll. Pierre Bourdieu sociologue, Fayard, 2004.**

Люди с историями, люди без историй: Диалог между Пьером Бурдьё и Роже Шартье // Новое Литературное Обозрение. 2003. № 60. **Original: Gens à histoires, gens sans histoires: dialogue entre Pierre Bourdieu et Roger Chartier, Politix, 1989: 53-60.**

Languages

Russian	native
French	fluent
English	fluent